
                                                                                                                       1  

 
State of Rhode Island 

Department of Administration / Division of Purchases 
One Capitol Hill, Providence, Rhode Island 02908-5855 

Tel: (401) 574-8100   Fax: (401) 574-8387 
 
 

Solicitation Information 
1/22/2020 

 
ADDENDUM #3 

 
 

RFP #7599917 
 
TITLE: Dental Health Plan(s) for RIte Smiles Program 
 
Bid Closing Date & Time: Monday, February 3, 2020 @ 10:00 AM Eastern Time (ET)  
              
 

Notice to Vendors 
 
 
Attached are vendor questions with State responses.  No further questions will be 
answered. 
 
 
 
             
 
Dawn Vittorioso 
Buyer II 
 
Interested parties should monitor this website, on a regular basis, for any additional information that may be 
posted. 
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Vendor Questions with State Responses for RFP #7599917 – Dental Health Plan(s) for 
RIte Smiles Program 
 
 
Question 1:     What is the anticipated budget for the project? 
  

Answer to question 1:  EOHHS will pay actuarially-certified capitation rates as outlined in the 
LOI Procurement Library, item #28, SFY 2021 RIte Smiles Capitation Rates.  

 
Question 2: Attachment (6) – Actuarial Basis for Capitation was not included (Section 3.4 Model Contract 

Attachments, page 182).  Could you please provide this information?     
 

Answer to question 2:  Reference the Procurement Library, item #28, SFY 2021 RIte Smiles 
Capitation Rates.  
 
 

Question 3: Page 5 #12:  “Regulations Governing Participation by Small Business Enterprises in State 
Purchases of Goods and Services and Public Works Projects.”  These regulations do not appear 
to be included in the LOI.  Is this the most accurate and updated link to use to review the 
regulations?  http://odeo.ri.gov/documents/regulations-governing-participation-by-small-
business-enterprises-in-state-purchases-of-goods-and-services-and-public-works-projects-
4202017.pdf    

 
Answer to question 3:   http://webserver.rilin.state.ri.us/Statutes/TITLE37/37-14.1/INDEX.HTM  

 
 
Question 4:   Page 5 #12:  “Vendors shall submit their ISBE participation rate on the enclosed form entitled 

“MBE, WBE and/or DisBE Plan Form”, which shall be submitted in a separate, sealed envelope 
as part of the proposal.”  We cannot locate this form in the LOI.  Can you please post this?  

  
Answer to question 4:  Disregard this section. 

  
 

Question 5: We understand the deadline for submitting questions is through January 15, 2020 at 10:00 AM 
(ET).  However, we do not see a date by when they will be answered.  Are you able to share that 
information?  

 
Answer to question 5:  Agency responses to questions will be posted by 1/22/2020.  Should there 
be additional time, the submission date will be extended, and an addendum will be posted. 
 
 

Question 6: Section 3.1.1 at Page 12 of 47 of the LOI, entitled, “Dental Plan(s) Licensure and Organizational 
Requirements” does not list nonprofit dental service corporations as a qualified bidder. Delta 
Dental of Rhode Island is a nonprofit dental service corporation that is licensed/ regulated by the 
Department of Business Regulation (“DBR”) under Chapter 27-20.1 of the Rhode Island General 
Laws. Inasmuch - as the LOI is devoted entirely to the delivery of dental benefits, do we assume 
correctly that the omission of nonprofit dental service corporations from specific mention in 
Section 3.1.1 was inadvertent and not intended to exclude Delta Dental of Rhode Island as 
an Offeror or Contractor with respect to the LOI?  

 

http://www.eohhs.ri.gov/ProvidersPartners/RIteSmilesReferenceMaterials.aspx
http://www.eohhs.ri.gov/ProvidersPartners/RIteSmilesReferenceMaterials.aspx
http://www.eohhs.ri.gov/ProvidersPartners/RIteSmilesReferenceMaterials.aspx
http://www.eohhs.ri.gov/ProvidersPartners/RIteSmilesReferenceMaterials.aspx
http://odeo.ri.gov/documents/regulations-governing-participation-by-small-business-enterprises-in-state-purchases-of-goods-and-services-and-public-works-projects-4202017.pdf
http://odeo.ri.gov/documents/regulations-governing-participation-by-small-business-enterprises-in-state-purchases-of-goods-and-services-and-public-works-projects-4202017.pdf
http://odeo.ri.gov/documents/regulations-governing-participation-by-small-business-enterprises-in-state-purchases-of-goods-and-services-and-public-works-projects-4202017.pdf
http://odeo.ri.gov/documents/regulations-governing-participation-by-small-business-enterprises-in-state-purchases-of-goods-and-services-and-public-works-projects-4202017.pdf
http://odeo.ri.gov/documents/regulations-governing-participation-by-small-business-enterprises-in-state-purchases-of-goods-and-services-and-public-works-projects-4202017.pdf
http://odeo.ri.gov/documents/regulations-governing-participation-by-small-business-enterprises-in-state-purchases-of-goods-and-services-and-public-works-projects-4202017.pdf
http://webserver.rilin.state.ri.us/Statutes/TITLE37/37-14.1/INDEX.HTM
http://webserver.rilin.state.ri.us/Statutes/TITLE37/37-14.1/INDEX.HTM
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Answer to question 6:  Yes.  
 
 

Question 7: The Introduction (page 3) states the Initial Contract Period is for three (3) years.  However, in the 
Proposal section (M) Plan for Enhanced Care Coordination (4), it states that the initial contract 
period is for twenty-four (24) months.  Please confirm the length of the initial contract period.       

 
Answer to question 7:  The initial contract period will begin July 1, 2020 for three (3) years.   

 
 
Question 8: Please confirm that opioid prescriptions are a benefit covered under the RIte Care medical 

program and not covered under the RIte Smiles program.     
 

Answer to question 8:  Confirmed. 
 

 
Question 9: Please confirm whether member handbooks must be mailed (in addition to website posting) to all 

enrollees or if the ID card carrier meets this requirement as a “new member packet.” (Model 
Contract p. 24; 25)  

 
Answer to question 9:  Member handbooks must be available on the Contractor’s member 
website.  The new member packet must contain information on how to access member handbook 
and if a hard copy is requested it must be made available.  
 

 
Question 10:  Members are covered “until their 21st birthday”.   Do benefits end the day of their birthday, or 

end of their birthday month? 
  

Answer to question 10:   Benefits end on the last day of their birthday month. 
 
 
Question 11: Attachment E:  Monthly Capitation Rates - What time period is the Base Benefit Expense? What 

is the New Benefit Add-On?  What time period will be used for the updated calculation?  
 

Answer to question 11:  The base benefit expense is estimated state fiscal year (SFY) 2021 
benefit expense, which was developed using historical SFY 2017 and 2018 data. The final SFY 
2021 capitation rates will be developed using more recent historical data. The new benefit add-
on reflects the estimated costs for new benefits in SFY 2021 that were not covered during SFY 
2017 and SFY 2018, including silver diamine fluoride, immediate and reline dentures, tooth 
reimplantation, and frenulectomy. 
 
 

Question 12: Will the capitation rates shown on page 181 be paid to carriers based on actual enrollment and 
rates by age category?   Or, is the one blended rate ($19.74 estimate) paid to all carriers 
regardless of distribution of members by age category? 

 
Answer to question 12:  The capitation rates shown on page 181 will be paid to carriers based on 
actual enrollment and rates by age category.  

 
 

Question 13: Please provide a summary of the historical capitation rates by age category?   
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Answer to question 13: Reference RIte Smiles Rates, which contains historical capitation rates by 
age category (attached).  
 

 
Question 14: Please provide statistics on number of RIte Smiles members that requested second opinions?      
 

Answer to question 14:  All relevant statistics and current data analytics will be shared with 
awarded vendor(s).  
 
 

Question 15: Please provide statistics available on number of calls to member services, the nature of the calls 
and call volumes by time of day and day of the week?    

 
Answer to question 15:  All relevant statistics and current data analytics will be shared with 
awarded vendor(s). 
 
 

Question 16: Please provide statistics available on the number of calls made after normal service hours of 8am 
to 6pm EST? 

    
Answer to question 16:  All relevant statistics and current data analytics will be shared with 
awarded vendor(s). 
 
 

Question 17: Please provide information regarding the number of dental claims that involved third party 
liability subrogation?    

 
Answer to question 17:  All relevant statistics and current data analytics will be shared with 
awarded vendor(s). 
 
 

Question 18: Please provide information on number of RIte Smiles members that had services at school-based 
programs?    

 
Answer to question 18:  All relevant statistics and current data analytics will be shared with 
awarded vendor(s). 
 
 

Question 19: What percentage of dental services received by Rite Smiles members were provided by a 
Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC)?    

 
Answer to question 19:  Approximately twenty-seven percent (27%) of care is provided at 
FQHCs.  
 
 

Question 20: Please provide information on number of RIte Smiles members that had services outside of 
Rhode Island? 

 
Answer to question 20:  Approximately two percent (2%) of care is delivered in bordering 
communities.   
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Question 21: Will the State provide historical - claim level information for members previously enrolled in 
another plan (such information is needed to prevent fraudulent/erroneous claim submissions)? 

 
Answer to question 21:  Awarded bidders will be provided historical information relevant to 
program implementation.   
 
 

Question 22: Page 34 of 47 states: “The Bidder(s) shall attach the completed checklist to their proposal.”  We 
cannot locate the checklist in the LOI. Can you please post this checklist? Or are Bidders to 
create their own? 
 
Answer to question 22:  The form is attached below.    
 
 

Question 23: Would the State entertain additional time to submit a proposal beyond Monday, February 3, 
2020 @ 10:00 AM EST? 

 
Answer to question 23:  Proposals received after the above-referenced due date and time shall 
not be accepted. Proposals misdirected to other State locations or those not presented to the 
Division of Purchases by the scheduled due date and time shall be determined to be late and 
shall not be accepted. Proposals faxed, or emailed, to the Division of Purchases shall not be 
accepted. The official time clock is in the reception area of the Division of Purchases.  

 
 
Question 24: Would the State entertain a later implementation date of February 1, 2021? 
 

Answer to question 24:  No. 
 
 

Question 25: Does the State have an anticipated date to announce a decision? 
 

Answer to question 25:  No. 
 
 

Question 26: What is the State’s desire to have more than one carrier? 
 

Answer to question 26:  Not applicable.  
 
 

Question 27: What percentage of the population is auto assigned to a carrier? 
 

Answer to question 27:  100 percent of the population is currently auto-assigned, as there is 
currently only one RIte Smiles Contractor.  
 
 

Question 28: Is there a minimum enrollment guarantee? 
 

Answer to question 28:  No. 
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Question 29: Can the State provide estimated monthly changes in enrollment? 
 

Answer to question 29:  Please see information contained in the Medicaid Expenditure Report, 
found in the LOI Procurement Library. 
 
 

Question 30: Can the State share additional details around the reporting requirements and reporting 
templates? 

 
Answer to question 30:  Relevant information will be provided to awarded Bidder(s) as part of 
program implementation.   
 
 

Question 31: Can the State provide Dental Procedure Codes for the Schedule of In-Plan Benefits listed under 
Attachment A on page 169? 

 
Answer to question 31:  No.  

 
 

Question 32: On page 5 of Section 1: Introduction, Instructions and Notifications to Offerors, paragraph (8), 
the instructions state that “Any information submitted in response to this LOI that a vendor 
believes are trade secrets or commercial or financial information which is of a privileged or 
confidential nature should be clearly marked as such. The vendor should provide a brief 
explanation as to why each portion of information that is marked should be withheld from 
public disclosure.”  

 
Will the State consider allowing Bidders to submit a separate proposal copy that contains all 
privileged/confidential markings and accompanying explanations, rather than requiring this 
information on all proposal copies, so as not to impact page count? If the State will not allow 
Bidders to submit a separate marked copy, please verify that the accompanying explanations 
can be included in an Attachment to the Technical Proposal, so as not to impact page count.
  
Answer to question 32:  The State verifies that the accompanying explanations can be included 
in an Attachment to the Technical Proposal, so as not to impact page count. 
 
Vendors are advised that the Division of Purchases may release records marked confidential by 
a vendor upon a public records request if the State determines the marked information does not 
fall within the category of trade secrets or commercial or financial information which is of a 
privileged or confidential nature. 
 
 

Question 33: On page 16 of the LOI, in Section 3.1.4, Subsection H. Member Handbook, the Contractor is to 
provide the following: “An electronic copy of the Handbook is to be included on the Bidder(s) 
member website and available for viewing and downloading. Additionally, members may 
request an alternate version (paper, audio or specific language) by contacting the successful 
Bidder(s) member services department.”  On page 36 of the LOI, Section 4. Technical 
Response, Subsection B) Plan for Enrollment, paragraph (7), the requirement is to provide “A 
description of how the Bidder will mail a Member Handbook, or, if preferred by the member, 
make handbook available on the website, to all members within ten (10) days of being notified 
of their enrollment;” The requirement on page 16 for an electronic copy of the Handbook with 

http://www.eohhs.ri.gov/ProvidersPartners/RIteSmilesReferenceMaterials.aspx
http://www.eohhs.ri.gov/ProvidersPartners/RIteSmilesReferenceMaterials.aspx
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print copy sent upon request appears to conflict with the requirement on page 36 to mail a 
handbook within 10 days, with website access available upon request. Can the State please 
clarify? 
 
Answer to question 33:  Member handbooks must be available on the Contractor’s member 
website.  The new member packet must contain information on how to access member 
handbook and if a hard copy is requested it must be made available on paper within ten (10) 
days of their request.  Translation must be made available upon request. 
 
 

Question 34: On page 19 of the LOI, Section 3.1.7 Provider Networks, the Contractor is to provide the 
following: “The provider network consists of a continuum of care required to meet the diverse 
and often complex needs of RIte Smiles members and shall contain, but shall not be limited to, 
general dentists and pediatric dentists to meet the service accessibility standards outlined later in 
this section as well an adequate specialty network that includes the following specialty dentists: 
pediatric dentists, periodontists, endodontists, prosthodontists, oral surgeons, and orthodontists.” 
Will the State consider removing the requirement to include prosthodontists in the provider 
network since prosthodontist services are typically not required for children and young adults, 
and general/pediatric dentists generally perform these services?  

 
Answer to question 34:  No.   

 
 

Question 35: On page 21 of the LOI, in Section 3.5.2 Telehealth/Teledental, “The Bidder(s) is required to 
identify policies and procedures which describe the organization, policies and procedures 
surrounding a Telehealth program. A Telehealth program should include but is not limited to 
the following covered services: monitoring of patient vital signs; patient education; medication 
management; equipment management; review of patient trends and/or other changes in patient 
condition necessitating professional intervention; and other activities deemed necessary and 
appropriate according to a member’s plan of care.” These Telehealth requirements appear to be 
more applicable to a Medical Plan than a Dental Plan. Will the State consider revising the 
requirement to allow Bidders to offer innovative Teledentistry options in lieu of the current 
Telehealth requirement?     

 
Answer to question 35:  While the State welcomes innovative approaches to supporting 
teledentistry, the State cannot change how Telehealth/Teledental is defined.  
 
 

Question 36: On page 31 of the LOI, in Section 3. Bidder’s Experience, Understanding, and Readiness to 
Perform, paragraph (B), the Contractor is to provide “A description of the Bidder, and its 
subcontractors, regarding the type of organization and ownership; historical perspective of 
organization; special Federal and State designation businesses (e.g. small businesses, 
minority/women owned business and disability business enterprises); size of company, national 
recognitions; and other information that the Bidder would deem appropriate.” To fully comply 
with the requirement to provide a description of all subcontractors’ type of organization and 
ownership; historical perspective; special Federal and State designation; size; and national 
recognitions, and stay within page count, please confirm that the Bidder can include this 
information in an Attachment to the Technical Proposal? 

 
Answer to question 36:  Confirmed. 
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Question 37: On page 32 of the LOI, in Section 3. Bidder’s Experience, Understanding, and Readiness to 

Perform, paragraph (I), the Bidder is to provide “Three (3) References from parties familiar 
with the Bidder providing similar services as requested in this LOI, including the Agency, 
contact person, e-mail address, address, telephone and fax numbers, and a description of the size 
and scope of the previous engagement.” In order to provide the full scope of services for the 
three references required, please confirm that these references can be included in an attachment 
to the Technical Proposal. 

 
Answer to question 37:  Confirmed. 
 
 

Question 38: On page 39 of the LOI, in Section H Plan for Meeting the Operational Data Reporting 
Requirements, the Bidder is to provide “a description of how the Bidder will provide, in a time-
frame determined by the State, a person-level record of all services provided.” On page 55 of the 
Model Contract, all references to person-level records have been removed and Encounter Data 
Reporting (Section 2.13, Subsection B) has been added. Can the State please clarify? 

 
Answer to question 38:  Successful bidders will define procedures for meeting operational data 
reporting and will be required to submit encounter data per specifications outlined in the LOI 
and model contract.   
 
 

Question 39: On page 39 of the LOI, in Section I Plan for Meeting Grievance and Appeals Requirements, the 
Bidder is to provide “a description of the Bidder’s policies for processing grievances permits a 
provider, acting on behalf of a member and with the member’s written consent, to file an appeal 
of an action within thirty (30) days.” On page 60 of the Model Contract, the 30-day requirement 
has been removed. Can the State please clarify? 

 
Answer to question 39:  The time period remains thirty (30) days.  
 
 

Question 40: On page 72 of the Model Contract, Section 2.15 Payments To and From Plans, Subsection F. 
Exemption for Indians Served by Indian Healthcare states that “The Contractor shall exempt 
Indians from payment of enrollment fees, premiums, deductibles, coinsurance, copayments, or 
similar charge for any item or service covered by Medicaid if the Indian is furnished the item or 
service directly by an Indian health care provider, I/T/U or through Contract Services, HIS 
(CHS). The Contractor must pay these providers the full Medicaid payment rate for furnishing 
the item or service. Their payments may not be reduced by the amount of any enrollment fee, 
premium, deduction, copayment, or similar charge that otherwise would be due from the Indian.” 
Please verify that EOHHS will identify Indians on the eligibility file for exemption purposes. 

 
Answer to question 40:  Relevant information will be provided to awarded Bidder(s) as part of 
program implementation.   
 
 

Question 41: On page 73 of the Model Contract, Section 2.15 Payments To and From Plans, Subsection H. 
Reinsurance states that the “Contractor shall be required to obtain reinsurance coverage from a 
source other than the State. Proof of such reinsurance is a condition of contract award. 
However, the State reserves the right to review Contractor reinsurance coverage and to require 
changes to that coverage in the form of lower thresholds if considered necessary based on the 
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Contractor’s overall financial or performance condition.” Please clarify what is meant by 
performance condition. What will EOHHS measure and how often? 

 
Answer to question 41:  The State reserves the right to review the contract of reinsurance 
coverage and require higher levels of reinsurance if the financial condition warrants.  
 
 

Question 42: On page 75 of the Model Contract, Section 2.16 Financial Standards, Subsection D. Financial 
Data Reporting System states that “EOHHS is implementing and requiring Contractors to report 
though a new Financial Data Reporting System (FDRS). The FDRS will utilize specific 
templates to be populated by the Contractor. The FDRS will capture the Contractor’s 
membership, benefit expenses, including general ledger adjustments, sub-capitated 
arrangements, reinsurance arrangements, reserves, benefit expense recoveries and 
administrative costs for each Premium Rating Group.” Please provide a definition for Premium 
Rating Group. 

 
Answer to question 42:  Premium rating group is the cohort for which a capitation rate is 
developed, also referred to as a “capitation rate cell”. 
 
 

Question 43: On page 78 of the Model Contract, Section 2.18 Compliance, Section A. General Requirements 
states that the “Contractor is required to comply with H.R. 6 The SUPPORT Act Title 1; Section 
1004, which mandates the following: 
• Contractor must have automated drug utilization review safety edits for opioid refills 
• Automated claims review process to identify refills in excess of State limits 
• Monitor concurrent prescribing of opioids, benzodiazepines and/or antipsychotics (Including 

children’s antipsychotics) 
• Maximum daily morphine equivalent (MME) safety edits; and 
• Concurrent utilization alerts for beneficiaries concurrently prescribed opioids and 

benzodiazepines and/or antipsychotics” 
 

Will the State consider removing the requirement for complying with H.R. 6 The SUPPORT Act 
Title 1; Section 1004, as it appears the pharmaceutical benefit is outside the scope of this 
contract?  If the requirement remains in the Model Contract, please verify how the Contractor 
will receive the information necessary to meet this requirement (e.g., claims data, prescription 
information, etc.). 

 
Answer to question 43:  The pharmacy benefit is outside this contract, but the emphasis on H.R. 
6 is regarding coordination with the medical Contractor as it is a Federal requirement. Relevant 
information will be provided to awarded Bidder(s) as part of program implementation.   
 
 

Question 44: On page 80 of the Model Contract, Section 2.18D was modified from “Disclosure by Providers: 
Information on Ownership and Control” to “Disclosure by Providers: Information Related to 
Business Transactions.”  Section 2.18D goes on to reference 42 CFR Section 455.104, which is 
a regulation on ownership and control. Can the State verify this change is an error? 

 
Answer to question 44:  The requirement requires ownership, control and other information 
related to business transactions.   
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Question 45: Attachment F of the Model Contract does not contain the Data Book and Actuarial Certification. 
Can you please post these documents?  

 
Answer to question 45:  Yes. These items are contained in the LOI Procurement Library, item 
#28, SFY 2021 RIte Smiles Capitation Rates. 
 
 

Question 46: Please confirm the ISBE participation criteria is worth up to 6 points during the evaluation. 
 
Answer to question 46:  This section shouldn’t have been included in the solicitation; the rates 
are set rates. 
 

 
Question 47: For the ISBE participation – what is the total contract price for this opportunity? 

 
Answer to question 47:  This section shouldn’t have been included in the solicitation; the rates 
are set rates. 

 
 

Question 48: Will bidders have an opportunity to ask questions about the missing documentation from this 
LOI (for example, the MBE, WBE and/or DisBE Plan Form, the Data Book, and Actuarial 
Certification) after the January 15 question submission cut off? 
 
Answer to question 48:  No. 
 
 

Question 49: Page 44 of 47 provides detail on the formatting requirements for the written documents and 
printed copies. We understand the technical proposals should be numbered sequentially, which 
includes all attachments. Our audited financial documents are unable to be altered to ensure the 
integrity of the information contained within and therefore, we cannot number them sequentially 
within the master document. Can an exception be made for this circumstance?  
 
Answer to question 49:  Yes. Audited financial documents can be included as an attachment and 
need not be numbered in the Technical Response.   
 
 

Question 50: Page 43 of 47 states: “The technical proposal is limited to fifty (50) pages. This technical 
response page limit excludes any attachments, requested documentation, appendices, resumes of 
key staff that will provide services covered by this request.” 
 
Answer to question 50:  This is not a question. 
 
 

Question 51: Are bidders permitted to include attachments and other documentation that support their 
narrative, but that have not been explicitly requested within the LOI? 
 
Answer to question 51:  Yes. 
 
 

http://www.eohhs.ri.gov/ProvidersPartners/RIteSmilesReferenceMaterials.aspx
http://www.eohhs.ri.gov/ProvidersPartners/RIteSmilesReferenceMaterials.aspx
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Question 52: Page 43 of 47 states: The technical proposal is limited to fifty (50) pages.  We typically repeat 
the question within our response document to ensure evaluators can easily find the answers. 
Will repeating the question count against the page limit? 
 
Answer to question 52:  Yes. 
 
 

Question 53: As it relates to enrollment data supplied by EOHHS to the Dental Plan, will the following 
member information be provided on the eligibility file: 

• Language  
• MCO or PCP  
• Communication preference (i.e. email, and if so, will email addresses be provided?)   
• Designation of any special health care needs. 

 
Answer to question 53:   

• Language – Yes  
• MCO or PCP – Yes 
• Communication preference (i.e. email, and if so, will email addresses be provided?) – 

Yes 
• Designation of any special health care needs. – No  

 
 

Question 54: Page 3 of 47 states: “This is a Letter of Interest (LOI), not a Request for Proposal (RFP) or an 
Invitation to Bid (ITB).“  What is the difference between an LOI an an RFP or ITB in Rhode 
Island? 
 
Answer to question 54:  Not applicable to Bidders for the purpose of this procurement.   

 
 

Question 55: Please confirm that these are the most current standard Rhode Island Medicaid 
fees: http://www.eohhs.ri.gov/Portals/0/Uploads/Documents/Fee%20Schedules/Medicaid%20Fe
e%20Schedule.pdf.  
 
Answer to question 55:  Confirmed.  
 
 

Question 56: Please confirm the percent of RIte Smiles dental providers/claims paid in 2018/2019 using the 
standard Rhode Island Medicaid fees. 
 
Answer to question 56:  Not applicable. 
 
 

Question 57: Regarding Section 2.15.C.xii of the Model Contract - Please confirm if a minimum or 
maximum fee schedule is required. 
 
Answer to question 57:  Not applicable.   
 
 

Question 58: Regarding Section 2.15.C.xiii of the Model Contract - Please confirm that the Health Insurer 
Fee will be an additional expense billable to the state and is not included in the Capitation Rate. 

https://nam01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.eohhs.ri.gov%2FPortals%2F0%2FUploads%2FDocuments%2FFee%2520Schedules%2FMedicaid%2520Fee%2520Schedule.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CElise.Cannestra%40greatdentalplans.com%7C68b65291d76949d5c7b108d799c30bd5%7Cb5014925e83f4fb6a482eb9184fe1c81%7C0%7C0%7C637146935326832991&sdata=GXxwJF5f7TCfqa0fI3d5EtjSfTNNahf%2FTjHSTopnnrY%3D&reserved=0
https://nam01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.eohhs.ri.gov%2FPortals%2F0%2FUploads%2FDocuments%2FFee%2520Schedules%2FMedicaid%2520Fee%2520Schedule.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CElise.Cannestra%40greatdentalplans.com%7C68b65291d76949d5c7b108d799c30bd5%7Cb5014925e83f4fb6a482eb9184fe1c81%7C0%7C0%7C637146935326832991&sdata=GXxwJF5f7TCfqa0fI3d5EtjSfTNNahf%2FTjHSTopnnrY%3D&reserved=0
https://nam01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.eohhs.ri.gov%2FPortals%2F0%2FUploads%2FDocuments%2FFee%2520Schedules%2FMedicaid%2520Fee%2520Schedule.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CElise.Cannestra%40greatdentalplans.com%7C68b65291d76949d5c7b108d799c30bd5%7Cb5014925e83f4fb6a482eb9184fe1c81%7C0%7C0%7C637146935326832991&sdata=GXxwJF5f7TCfqa0fI3d5EtjSfTNNahf%2FTjHSTopnnrY%3D&reserved=0
https://nam01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.eohhs.ri.gov%2FPortals%2F0%2FUploads%2FDocuments%2FFee%2520Schedules%2FMedicaid%2520Fee%2520Schedule.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CElise.Cannestra%40greatdentalplans.com%7C68b65291d76949d5c7b108d799c30bd5%7Cb5014925e83f4fb6a482eb9184fe1c81%7C0%7C0%7C637146935326832991&sdata=GXxwJF5f7TCfqa0fI3d5EtjSfTNNahf%2FTjHSTopnnrY%3D&reserved=0
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Answer to question 58:  Correct, provision for the health insurer fee (HIF) is not included in the 
capitation rate included as part of the LOI. To the extent the HIF liability is incurred by a dental 
plan for RIte Smiles, EOHHS intends to pay the assessment through a retroactive adjustment to 
the capitation rates. The adjustment will be grossed up for the associated corporate income and 
state taxes.  The amount of the adjustment will be calculated based on the applicable health 
insurance providers fee (HIPF) tax rate as a percentage of earned premium reported on Form 
8963 for the dental plan’s parent company, multiplied by the calculated Rhode Island Medicaid 
premium revenue received by the dental plan that is subject to the HIPF.  
 
 

Question 59: Attachment E of the Model Contract – Please explain the New Benefit Add On. 
 
Answer to question 59:  New Benefit Add On includes Silver Diamine Fluoride, immediate and 
reline dentures, and oral surgery procedures D7270 (Tooth reimplantation) and D7960 
(Frenulectomy), as new benefits for the RIte Smiles program effective July 1, 2020.  It is 
included in the data book.  
 
 

Question 60: Can we please receive 2018 and 2019 detailed claims (claim/line level) with procedure code, 
tooth, surface, member age, distinct member identifier, paid amount, etc. as well as enrollment 
by age and month? 
 
Answer to question 60:  Relevant information will be provided to awarded Bidder(s) as part of 
program implementation.   
 
 

Question 61: Our bidding entity holds: (i) a Rhode Island Health Plan Certificate (Certificate Number LE-210) 
pursuant to RI Chapter 23-17.13; and (ii) is currently regulated by the Rhode Island Department 
of Business Regulation in connection with transacting the business of accident and health 
insurance in the State of Rhode Island. We note there has been a change in requirements from the 
Rhode Island dental RFI released in late 2019 such that certification by a nationally known 
health utilization management organization (“URAC Certified”) is now required for any bidder 
that is not licensed as an HMO. This requirement would exclude a significant number of bidders 
that are currently licensed in Rhode Island as a Health Plan but are not URAC Certified.  

 
Can you confirm that a bidder that holds a Health Plan Certificate does not need to comply with 
the additional requirements referenced below: 
Meets that requirements under R.I. Gen. Laws section 27-18.9-8: Benefit Determination and 
Utilization Review Act. 
 
Answer to question 61:  The Bidder must meet the State’s licensure requirements outlined in 
Appendix B, Model Contract, section 2.2, Licensure/Certification.  
 
 

Question 62: Is certified as a utilization review entity by a nationally known health utilization management 
organization. 

 
Answer to question 62:  This is not a question. 
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Question 63: Given the benefit of a linked oral health medical health plan arrangement, how will the state 
balance existing relationships and the desire to balance the membership through assignment and 
caps? 

 
Answer to question 63:  Not applicable.  
 
 

Question 64: Has the State developed the algorithm for assignment, and can that be shared? 
 
Answer to question 64:  No.  
 
 

Question 65: If a current MCO successfully bids for dental coverage, will its current members (for medical 
coverage) who do not affirmatively choose a dental carrier be default assigned to said MCO? 
Please provide rationale.  

 
Answer to question 65:  Consideration of member assignment will be discussed with successful 
Bidder(s) during implementation.  
 
 

Question 66: Is there any specific impact on bidders due to the State's choice of using an LOI compared to an 
RFP?  
 
Answer to question 66:  Bidders must accept the capitated rates.  
 
 

Question 67: The window for implementation post award is very short.  Has the State contemplated an 
extension of the existing contract and a delayed effective date to insure a quality transition of 
these children to new plans?  
 
Answer to question 67:  Yes.  
 
 

Question 68: If the bid is structured through a sub-contract/vendor relationship, how do the various 
requirements apply?  For example, would both the subcontractor and the bidder both have to 
demonstrate financial strength?  

 
Answer to question 68:  Yes.  All contractual requirements apply to both. 
 
 

Question 69: Would the State consider placing a cap on a bidder’s membership at the desired maximum and 
closing it to additional members?  Otherwise, it is unclear how the proposed maximum 
members will work considering the federal obligation for member choice.  
 
Answer to question 69:  Reference Appendix B, Model Contract, section 2.4.M, Market Share 
Capacity Limit.   
 
 

Question 70: Enrollment file questions:   
a. Is the enrollment a bi-monthly or daily file? 
b. Is the enrollment effective date first of the month following the file date? 
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c. How will changes (i.e., disenrollment, plan change, address/phone number changes) be 
communicated to the Plan, since the enrollment file is an "audit" file only?  

 
Answer to question 70:   
 
a. Monthly.   
b. Yes.  
c. Monthly.   
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State of Rhode Island 
Division of Purchases 

 
Bid Preparation Checklist 

 
 Date: January 22, 2020 
 
 Bid#:  7599917 
 
 Title:  Dental Health Plan(s) for RIte Smiles Program 
 
 
This checklist is provided to assist the bidder in preparing a bid proposal for submission.  It is not a 
substitute for a thorough review of the Instruction to Bidders nor a comprehensive list of all bid proposal 
requirements.  Each bidder is responsible to review the Instructions to Bidders and to comply with all 
requirements of the Solicitation.   
 
Bid Proposal Package: 
 

 RIVIP Bidder Certification Cover Form (completed) signed in ink  
 Completed Form W-9  https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf  
 Technical Proposal 

1. One (1) Electronic copy on a CD-R marked “Technical Proposal – Original”; 
2. One (1) printed paper copy, marked “Technical Proposal – Original” and signed; 
3. Eight (8) printed paper copies; 
4. All Addenda have been acknowledged; 
5. Erasures or corrections have been initialed by person signing the Bid Form; 
6. Bid Form is signed in ink; 
7. Assurances/Attestations. 

 Formatting of CD-Rs – Separate CD-Rs are required for the technical proposal.  All CD-Rs submitted 
must be labeled with: 
• Vendor’s name; 
• LOI #7599917; 
• LOI Title – Dental Health Plan(s) for RIte Smiles Program; 
• Proposal type (e.g., technical proposal). 

 All bid proposal documents in a sealed envelope with the specific Solicitation #, Solicitation title, and 
the bid proposal submission deadline marked in the upper left-hand corner of the envelope.  

 Each bid proposal submitted in a separate sealed envelope. 
 
 
 

https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf
https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf


History of Rite Smiles Payments

Average Monthly Enrollment, Premium, and Dental Benefits Paid:

FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

Average Premium Paid $1,445,582 $1,661,281 $1,887,525 $2,010,016 $2,166,551

Average Monthly Dental Component $1,274,826 $1,455,386 $1,639,713 $1,701,488 $1,935,106

Average Monthly Enrollment 77,971 88,684 98,601 107,336 113,291
Average PMPM $18.54 $18.73 $19.14 $18.73 $19.12

Data by Pay Level:

SFY
Pay Level 
Description

Average 
Enrollment

Dental 
Component 

PMPM Overall PMPM Monthly Benefits Monthly Premium HIF Indicator
FY15 MF 0-14 77,971                    $16.35 $18.54 $1,274,826 $1,445,582 HIF
FY16 MF 0-2 17,602                    $2.96 $3.38 $52,102 $59,495 HIF
FY16 MF 3-5 17,231                    $13.88 $15.84 $239,166 $272,939 HIF
FY16 MF 6-10 29,380                    $18.75 $21.40 $550,875 $628,732 HIF
FY16 MF 11-16 24,471                    $25.06 $28.61 $613,243 $700,115 HIF
FY17 MF 0-2 18,411                    $3.16 $3.63 $58,179 $66,832 HIF
FY17 MF 3-5 18,349                    $14.55 $16.75 $266,978 $307,346 HIF
FY17 MF 6-10 30,960                    $18.94 $21.80 $586,382 $674,928 HIF
FY17 MF 11-17 30,881                    $23.58 $27.15 $728,174 $838,419 HIF
FY18 MF 0-2 19,587                    $3.01 $3.40 $58,957 $66,576 No HIF
FY18 MF 3-5 19,290                    $14.25 $17.03 $274,883 $328,509 No HIF
FY18 MF 6-10 31,494                    $19.07 $23.05 $600,591 $725,937 No HIF
FY18 MF 11-14 23,493                    $22.77 $26.24 $534,936 $616,456 No HIF
FY18 MF 15-18 13,472                    $17.23 $20.23 $232,123 $272,539 No HIF
FY19 MF 0-2 19,483                    $4.18 $4.68 $81,439 $91,180 No HIF
FY19 MF 3-5 19,468                    $15.17 $16.98 $295,330 $330,567 No HIF
FY19 MF 6-10 31,131                    $20.46 $22.91 $636,940 $713,211 No HIF
FY19 MF 11-15 29,489                    $22.48 $25.17 $662,913 $742,238 No HIF
FY19 MF 16-19 13,720                    $18.84 $21.09 $258,485 $289,355 No HIF

Notes:
[1] For FY15, EOHHS certified a single rate for all ages.
[2] Some periods included funding for the Health Insurer Fee. EOHHS financed 100% of the cost of this business expense. 
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